
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY JUNE 12, 2018 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Silent Prayer 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Communications and Petitions: 

1. Petition objecting to the proposed discontinuance of a portion of Cedar Street.   

7. Public Hearing(s): 

1. Public Hearing on a petition to vacate a portion of Cedar Street.   

8. Resolution from Public Hearing:  

1. A Resolution authorizing the vacation of a portion of Cedar Street for 
commercial development.  The Board of Public Works and the City Plan 
Commission recommend approval.  

 Note; The remaining resolutions on the agenda will be considered later in the 
meeting.   

9. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of May 8, 2018 meeting   

10. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending May 31, 2018   

11. Board of Public Works: 

1. Consider bid(s) on M2018-05 Streets Surface Project.  The Board of Public 
Works recommends approving the bid of $1,003,629.80 from Melvin 
Companies Ready Mix Concrete.   

12. City Plan Commission: 

1. Site plan for maintenance garage at Pine Crest Nursing Home, 2100 East 
Sixth Street.  The City Plan Commission recommends approval.  

13. Health and Safety Committee: 

1. Application from VFW Post 1638 for a temporary Class "B" (picnic) license to 
sell fermented malt beverages in the VFW Fairstand and in an area under the 
grandstand at the Merrill Festival Grounds during the Merrill Tractor Pull, July 
7, 2018.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends approval.  



Agenda Common Council Tuesday June 12, 2018 

2. Applications from Merrill Wrestling Club for five temporary Class "B" (picnic) 
licenses to sell fermented malt beverages in a fenced-in area at the Merrill 
Festival Grounds during the Lincoln County Free Fair, August 15-August 19, 
2018.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

3. 2018-2019 Liquor License Applications (per list).  The Health and Safety 
Committee recommends approval.  

14. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. Consider writing off 2017 over-collected Personal Property tax bill of 
$2,125.11 for Caterpillar Financial Services Corp.  The Personnel and 
Finance Committee recommends approval.  

15. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: Airport Commission, 
Board of Public Works, Board of Review, City Plan Commission, Committee 
of the Whole, Festival Grounds Committee, Health & Safety Committee, 
Housing Authority, Library Board, Merrill Enrichment Center Committee, 
Parks & Recreation Commission, Personnel & Finance Committee, 
Redevelopment Authority and Water & Sewage Disposal Committee.   

16. Ordinances: 

1. An Ordinance amending Code of Ordinances Chapter 26, Article V, Section 
26-136, to add language to the definition of tobacco products.  The Health 
and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

17. Resolutions: 

1. A Resolution approving the 2017 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report for 
the City of Merrill Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Alderman Norton is brining 
the resolution directly to the Common Council.  

2. A Resolution appointing Lincoln County Humane Society as an additional 
collection official for dog licensing taxes for the City.  The Personnel and 
Finance Committee recommends approval.  

18. General Items (amended agenda): 

1. Review of current City Strategic Plan   

19. Mayor's Communications 

20. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 3

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 o
b

je
ci

n
g

 t
o

 d
is

co
n

ti
n

u
an

ce
 o

f 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

33
76

 :
 P

et
it

io
n

 o
n

 d
is

co
n

ti
n

u
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 o
b

je
ci

n
g

 t
o

 d
is

co
n

ti
n

u
an

ce
 o

f 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

33
76

 :
 P

et
it

io
n

 o
n

 d
is

co
n

ti
n

u
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
ac

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

V
ac

at
io

n
  (

33
81

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 o
n

 a
 P

et
it

io
n

 t
o

 V
ac

at
e 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



7.1.b

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

V
ac

at
io

n
  (

33
81

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 o
n

 a
 P

et
it

io
n

 t
o

 V
ac

at
e 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



7.1.b

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

V
ac

at
io

n
  (

33
81

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 o
n

 a
 P

et
it

io
n

 t
o

 V
ac

at
e 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



7.1.b

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

V
ac

at
io

n
  (

33
81

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 o
n

 a
 P

et
it

io
n

 t
o

 V
ac

at
e 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



7.1.b

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

V
ac

at
io

n
  (

33
81

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 o
n

 a
 P

et
it

io
n

 t
o

 V
ac

at
e 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



7.1.b

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

et
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

V
ac

at
io

n
  (

33
81

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 o
n

 a
 P

et
it

io
n

 t
o

 V
ac

at
e 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



7.1.c

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

re
am

an
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
  (

33
81

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 o
n

 a
 P

et
it

io
n

 t
o

 V
ac

at
e 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VACATION OF A PORTION OF CEDAR 

STREET FOR COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT   
 

WHEREAS, Joseph Breaman, Owner of Breaman Investments, LLC. has 
requested, by petition, the vacating of a portion of Cedar Street for expansion of 
the business located at 1301 Center Avenue, Merrill, and; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Works on March 28, 2018 and the City 
Plan Commission on April 4, 2018 have recommended such vacation; 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 12th day of June 2018, 
that the following described street be vacated: 

Located in the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 12, Township 31N, Range 
6E, City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin: Beginning at a point 20 feet 
north of the NW corner of AP 239, thence north along the east ROW line 
of Cedar Street 114’ to the southern ROW line of N Center Avenue, 
thence southwest 87’ along the southern ROW line of N Center Avenue to 
the western ROW line of Cedar Street, thence south 58’ along the west 
ROW line of Cedar Street, thence east 66’ to the point of beginning. 
 
The City of Merrill reserves an easement for construction and 
maintenance purposes related to utilities serving the public currently 
located in, on or around the vacated area. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City hereby declares that the 

public interest requires this street vacation, and the portion of the street to be 
vacated is not needed for public purposes and hereby declares that the portion 
vacated shall revert, to the extent permitted by law, to the adjoining property 
owners. 

 

Recommended by: Board of Public 
Works and City Plan Commission 
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
Derek Woellner, Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk 

 

8.1.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 v
ac

at
in

g
 a

 p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
C

ed
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

 (
33

80
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 d

is
co

n
ti

n
u

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

C
ed

ar
 S

tr
ee

t)



CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

MINUTES ● TUESDAY MAY 8, 2018 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Woellner called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  
Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Paul Russell Alderperson - First District Present  

Pete Lokemoen Alderperson - Second District Present  

Ryan Schwartzman Alderperson - Third District & Council 
President  

Present  

Steve Osness Alderperson - Fourth District  Present  

John M. Van 
Lieshout 

Alderperson - Fifth District  Present  

Dave Sukow Alderperson - Sixth District  Present  

Rob Norton Alderperson - Seventh District Present  

Tim Meehean Alderperson - Eighth District Present  

Derek Woellner Mayor  Present  

 

Also in attendance: Public Works Director/City Engineer Rod Akey, Police Chief Corey 

Bennett, Street Superintendent Dustin Bonack, Transit Director Brad Brummond, City 

Attorney Tom Hayden, Fire Battalion Chief Steve Hintze, City Administrator Dave 

Johnson, Enrichment Center Director Tammie Mrachek, Building Inspector/Zoning 

Administrator Darin Pagel, Utility Operations Manager Gabe Steinagel, Library Director 

Stacy Stevens, Finance Director Kathy Unertl, Park and Recreation Director Dan 

Wendorf, Facilities Maintenance Supervisor Nick Wszalek and City Clerk Bill Heideman.  

 

2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

A moment of silence was observed to honor three men who perished in a medical helicopter 
crash recently.  

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

None.  

6. Minutes of previous meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of April 10, 2018 meeting and April 17, 2018 meeting   

Motion (Schwartzman/Sukow) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending April 30, 2018   

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

Motion (Schwartzman/Sukow) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

8. General agenda items: 

1. Employee years of service recognition:   

 Kortney L. Pike, 15 years (Street Department)   

City Clerk Heideman read a certificate of recognition for Kortney Pike.  

2. 2017 Audit presentation by Schenck SC representatives   

Representing Schenck SC, Greg Pitel gave a presentation on the 2017 City audit. He 
provided verbal information related to the "Management Communications" document 
and the "Annual Financial Report" document. 
 
Motion (Schwartzman/Norton) to place the 2017 audit documents on file.   

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

3. Consider request from Alderman Russell to reconsider the Mayor's 
Appointments approved at the April 17, 2018 Common Council meeting.   

Alderman Russell stated that Nancy Kwiesielewicz‘s appointment to the Housing 
Authority was submitted and approved at the April 17th, 2018 reorganization meeting, 
even though her term is not expiring soon. Alderman Russell added that he hoped the 
documentation accompanying future appointments could be made less confusing.  
 
No action was requested, necessary or taken.  

9. Board of Public Works: 

1. Consider bids for re-roofing of City Hall front roof.  Alderman Lokemoen is 
bringing the bids directly to the Common Council.  

Motion (Lokemoen/Meehean) to approve the bid of $38,890 from Kimmons Roofing.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

2. Street Use Permit application from VFW Post 1638 to close a portion of 
Cleveland Street (from the corner of Cleveland and East Second Street, north 
to 150 yards north of the VFW Post 1638), from 3:00 P.M. to 10:00 P.M. on 
Saturday, May 19, 2018, in conjunction with the Northwoods Veterans Post 
groundbreaking party.  Alderman Russell is bringing the application directly to 
the Common Council.  

Motion (Meehean/Norton) to approve.   

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

RESULT: APPROVED 

3. Consider bids for the M2018-04 Street Utility Project.  Mayor Woellner is 
bringing the bids directly to the Common Council. Public Works Director/City 
Engineer Akey recommends approving the bid of $874,572.15 from Merrill 
Gravel and Construction.   

Motion (Schwartzman/Lokemoen) to approve the bid of $874,572.15 from Merrill Gravel 
and Construction.  

RESULT: APPROVED BY ROLL CALL VOTE [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Russell, Lokemoen, Schwartzman, Osness, Van Lieshout, Sukow, Norton, 

Meehean 

4. Consider bids for the M2018-06 S. Alexander Street Utility Project.  Mayor 
Woellner is bringing the bids directly to the Common Council. Public Works 
Director/City Engineer Akey recommends approving the bid of $398,589.15 
from Merrill Gravel and Construction.   

Motion (Meehean/Van Lieshout) to approve the bid of $398,589.15 from Merrill Gravel 
and Construction.   

RESULT: APPROVED BY ROLL CALL VOTE [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Russell, Lokemoen, Schwartzman, Osness, Van Lieshout, Sukow, Norton, 

Meehean 

10. City Plan Commission: 

1. Site Plan for sign at the Prairie River Middle School.  The City Plan 
Commission recommends approval.  

Motion (Schwartzman/Russell) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

11. Health and Safety Committee: 

1. Applications from Merrill Baseball for 20 temporary Class "B" picnic licenses 
to sell fermented malt beverages inside Athletic Park during baseball games 
on the following dates in 2018:  May 17th, June 3rd, June 4th, June 7th, June 
12th, June 13th, June 17th, June 18th, June 24th, June 25th, June 26th, June 
27th, June 28th, July 3rd, July 5th, July 6th, July 7th, July 8th, July 9th, and 
July 22nd.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

Motion (Sukow/Russell) to approve.  

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

RESULT: APPROVED 

2. Applications from the Merrill Firefighters Charities for three temporary Class 
"B" (picnic) licenses to sell fermented malt beverages at Ott's Park in 
conjunction with the Merrill Firefighters Charities Softball Tournament, August 
3 - August 5, 2018.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends 
approval.  

Motion (Van Lieshout/Russell) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

3. Application from Riiser Fuels, LLC, for a Class "A" (beer) and a "Clsss A" 
(liquor) license for RStore #40, 1001 N. Center Ave., effective May 30, 2018.  
Alderman Russell is bringing the application directly to the Common Council. 

Motion (Sukow/Russell) to approve. 

RESULT: APPROVED 

4. Request from VFW Post 1638 for an extension of premises to sell alcohol in 
an area outdoors at VFW Post 1638, 205 N. Cleveland Street, from 3 P.M. to 
10 P.M. on Saturday May 19, 2018, in conjunction with the Northwoods 
Veterans Post groundbreaking party. Sales would be in an area south of the 
VFW Post into Cleveland Street and north of the VFW Post approximately 
100 yards. Wrist bands will be used to ensure compliance.  Alderman Russell 
in bringing the request directly to the Common Council.  

Motion (Meehean/Norton) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

12. Personnel and Finance Committee: 

1. Consider writing off 2017 over-collected Personal Property tax bill of $32.51 
for Mac-Gray Services (1312 W. Main St.).  The Personnel and Finance 
Committee recommends approval.  

Motion (Schwartzman/Russell) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

13. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: City Plan 
Commission, Festival Grounds Committee, Health & Safety Committee, 
Library Board, Parks & Recreation Commission, Personnel & Finance 
Committee, Police & Fire Commission and Water & Sewage Disposal 
Committee.   

Motion (Sukow/Meehean) to place on file.  

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

14. Election and Mayor's Appointments: 

1. Elect Alderperson member of the City Plan Commission, replacing Alderman 
Lokemoen, who has resigned from the City Plan Commission.   

Alderman Russell nominated Alderman Norton. 
 
Alderman Meehean nominated Alderman Schwartzman.  
 
A secret ballot resulted in five votes for Alderman Schwartzman and three votes for 
Alderman Norton. Therefore, Alderman Schwartzman was elected as Alderperson 
member the City Plan Commission.  

 Alderman Meehean to the Personnel and Finance Committee, replacing 
Alderman Lokemoen, who has resigned from the Personnel and Finance 
Committee.   

Motion (Schwarzman/Russell) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

 Mike Caylor Jr. to Food Vendor Representative on the Festival Grounds 
Committee, replacing Neal Christensen, who has resigned.   

Motion (Lokemoen/Osness) to approve the appointment.  
 
Motion (Meehean/Norton) to table the appointment until all seven of the food vendor 
groups are contacted and provide their input on the appointment. A roll call vote on the 
motion to table resulted in a 4-4 tie. Voting No - Alderman Russell, Alderman Lokemoen, 
Alderman Osness and Alderman Van Lieshout. After polling the audience, Mayor 
Woellner broke the tie by voting No on the motion to table. Therefore, the appointment 
was not tabled. 
 
Motion (Russell/Lokemoen) suspend the rules and grant floor privileges to any audience 
member who wished to address the appointment. On a roll call vote, the motion to grant 
floor privileges carried 6-2. Voting No - Alderman Norton and Alderman Meehean.   
 
Michael Caylor, Sue Kunkel and Becky Meyer spoke.  
 
The original motion to approve the appointment carried.    

 Alderman Norton to Chaiperson of the Water and Sewage Disposal 
Committee, replacing Alderman Lokemoen as Chairperson. Alderman 
Lokemoen will remain on the Water and Sewage Disposal Committee.   

Motion (Sukow/Osness) to excuse Alderman Lokemoen as Chairperson of the Water 
and Sewage Disposal Committee. Carried.  
 
Motion (Meehean/Osness) to approve Alderman Norton.   

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

RESULT: APPROVED 

 Jeremy Thompson to the Historic Preservation Committee.   

Motion (Russell/Schwartzman) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

 Tony Kusserow to the Transit Commission.   

Motion (Schwartzman/Lokemoen) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

15. Ordinances: 

 None.   

16. Resolutions: 

1. A Resolution approving a Certified Survey Map on Hillside Drive in the Town 
of Merrill by Robert White and Tina White (Resolution #2563).   

WHEREAS, Robert White and Tina White have applied for approval of a division 

of land by certified survey map pursuant to Code of Ordinances Sections 111-116 and 

111-119 for land located in part of Lot l of Certified Survey Map #391 and part of the 

Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of Section 1, Township 31 

North, Range 6 East, Town of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the application was referred to the City Plan Commission which 

considered the proposed division at a meeting on May 1, 2018; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has recommended approval of the land 

division by certified survey map; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 8th day of May, 2018, that the proposed certified 

survey map presented by Robert White and Tina White and prepared by Jason J. 

Pflieger, Northcentral Land Surveying, LLC, involving part of Lot l of Certified Survey 

Map #391 and part of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of 

Section 1, Township 31 North, Range 6 East, Town of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin 

is hereby approved. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk is directed to so certify the 

approval of this certified survey map and return the original to the applicant together with 

a certified copy of this resolution. 

 

Motion (Norton/Lokemoen) to approve.  

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

RESULT: APPROVED 

2. A Resolution ratifying the selection of a new Fire Chief for the City of Merrill 
Fire Department (Resolution #2564).   

WHEREAS, Merrill Fire Chief David A. Savone has retired from the Merrill Fire 

Department after a five year career as the Fire Chief; and, 

 

WHEREAS, after an extensive search the Police and Fire Commission offered 

the Chief’s position to Joshua R. Klug; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Joshua R. Klug has accepted the Commission’s offer; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 8th day of May, 2018, that the appointment of 

Joshua R. Klug by the Police and Fire Commission as Fire Chief for the City of Merrill 

Fire Department be ratified effective upon start of employment. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the salary shall be at a Grade 19 Step 3 of the 

City of Merrill Administrative, Professional, Supervisory and Technical Personnel Pay 

Scale. 

 

Motion (Norton/Schwartzman) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

3. A Resolution honoring David A. Savone for his extended service and great 
contribution to the City of Merrill (Resolution #2565).   

WHEREAS, David A. Savone has served the City of Merrill as Fire Chief  from 

December 3, 2012 to March 7, 2018; and, 

 

WHEREAS, David A. Savone’s, dedication to the Fire service and to the City of 

Merrill and his hard work in virtually every area in which he was involved will be greatly 

missed by the City of Merrill and its citizens; and, 

 

WHEREAS, David A. Savone has earned the admiration and respect of his fellow 

employees by the way in which he updated and modernized the department with new 

technology, advanced training and new state of the art equipment, among other 

advancements and improvements, and in the way he has carried out his duties; and, 

 

WHEREAS, David A. Savone’s skills and experience, will be missed at the City 

of Merrill Fire Department; 

 

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 8th day of May, 2018, that the Common Council, 

and the people of Merrill officially acknowledge with deep appreciation the faithful 

service David A. Savone has given the City of Merrill Fire Department and commends 

him for those 5 plus years of service; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we hereby commend the meritorious and 

dedicated service of David A. Savone, congratulate him upon the occasion of his 

retirement from the City of Merrill Fire Department, and extend our warmest wishes for 

his enjoyment of continued prosperity in the years that lie ahead. 

 

Motion (Common Council/Common Council) to approve.   

RESULT: APPROVED 

4. A Resolution honoring Gerald T. Hoock for his long-time service to the City of 
Merrill (Resolution #2566).   

WHEREAS, Gerald T. Hoock has served the City of Merrill Water Utility 
Department for 29 years, ultimately retiring as Water Wastewater System Operations 
Specialist III; and, 

 
WHEREAS, these years of service have been marked by dedication to the best 

interests of our community and citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gerald T. Hoock has earned the admiration and respect of his fellow 

employees by the way in which he has carried out his duties; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, Gerald T. Hoock’s skills and experience, will be missed at the City of 
Merrill Water Utility Department; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 8th day of May, 2018, that the Common Council, 
and the people of Merrill officially acknowledge with deep appreciation the faithful 
service Gerald T. Hoock has given the City of Merrill Water Utility Department and 
commends him for those 29 years of service; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that we hereby commend the meritorious and 

dedicated service of Gerald T. Hoock, congratulate him upon the occasion of his 
retirement from the City of Merrill Water Utility Department, and extend our warmest 
wishes for his enjoyment of continued prosperity in the years that lie ahead. 
 
Motion (Common Council/Common Council) to approve.  

RESULT: APPROVED 

17. Mayor's Communications 

Mayor Woellner noted that each alderman is to be a member of at least one "standing" 
committee. The appointments approved this evening have made that requirement a reality.  

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



Minutes Common Council Tuesday May 8, 2018 

City of Merrill Common Council minutes – Tuesday May 8, 2018 

 
All "standing" committees are to meet monthly. Mayor Woellner stated that he will strive to 
ensure that happens.  
 
Mayor Woellner apologized for missing a morning meeting recently.  
 
Mayor Woellner stated that, although he has not been on Facebook much lately, he plans 
on using it more as an avenue of communication.  
 
The City now has a Facebook page. The page title is "City of Merrill, Wisconsin".   

18. Adjournment 

Motion (Schwartzman/Russell) to adjourn. Carried. Adjourned at 7:58 P.M.  

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

05
-0

8 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
 (

33
06

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

M
ay

 8
, 2

01
8 

m
ee

ti
n

g
)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



10.1.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 -
 2

01
8-

05
  (

33
77

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

P
er

io
d

 E
n

d
in

g
 M

ay
 3

1,
 2

01
8)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
P

ro
je

ct
  (

33
34

 :
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
S

tr
ee

ts
 S

u
rf

ac
e 

P
ro

je
ct

)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
P

ro
je

ct
  (

33
34

 :
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
S

tr
ee

ts
 S

u
rf

ac
e 

P
ro

je
ct

)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
P

ro
je

ct
  (

33
34

 :
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
S

tr
ee

ts
 S

u
rf

ac
e 

P
ro

je
ct

)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
P

ro
je

ct
  (

33
34

 :
 B

id
s 

o
n

 M
20

18
-0

5 
S

tr
ee

ts
 S

u
rf

ac
e 

P
ro

je
ct

)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

P
in

e 
C

re
st

 in
fo

  (
33

23
 :

 S
it

e 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 g
ar

ag
e 

@
 P

in
e 

C
re

st
)



12.1.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

P
in

e 
C

re
st

 in
fo

  (
33

23
 :

 S
it

e 
p

la
n

 f
o

r 
m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 g
ar

ag
e 

@
 P

in
e 

C
re

st
)



13.1.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

F
W

 P
ic

n
ic

 L
ic

en
se

 f
o

r 
T

ra
ct

o
r 

P
u

ll 
Ju

ly
 7

, 2
01

8 
 (

33
09

 :
 P

ic
n

ic
 li

ce
n

se
 f

o
r 

V
F

W
 f

o
r 

tr
ac

to
r 

p
u

ll)



13.2.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

er
ri

ll 
W

re
st

lin
g

 P
ic

n
ic

 L
ic

en
se

 -
 F

ai
r 

- 
A

u
g

 1
5 

- 
A

u
g

 1
9 

 (
33

08
 :

 P
ic

n
ic

 L
ic

en
es

 f
o

r 
M

er
ri

ll 
W

re
st

lin
g

 C
lu

b
 f

o
r 

fa
ir

)



LIQUOR AND BEER LICENSE APPLICATIONS 
CITY OF MERRILL, LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
JULY 1, 2018 TO JUNE 30, 2019 LICENSE PERIOD 

 
CLASS B COMBINATION LICENSE 

 
  

3’s Company LLC   3’s Company   3201 E. Main St. 
 Bruce Schwartzman, Agent 
 
 All Aboard LLC   All Aboard   315 E. 2nd Street 
 Marion L. Clark, Agent  
 
 Eggers, Shirley   Avenue Bar   405 Grand Avenue 
 
 B’s Club 107 LLC   B’s Club 107   2410 State Rd 107    
 Brenda Lawrie, Agent 
 
 M & C Entertainment LLC  Ballyhoo’s    124 N. Prospect Street 
 Cheryl Fick, Agent 
 
 Berlin’s Trophy Bar LLC  Berlin’s Trophy Bar  808 E. Main Street 
 Gregory T. Berlin, Agent 
 
 Merrill Hotel Group, LLC  Boarders Inn & Suites  3209 E. Main Street 
 Brian Wogernese, Agent  by Cobblestone 
  
 Schultz, Stephen Allen  Collin’s Bar & Grill  2501 W. Main St  
 

Fick, Traci L.     Dat Bar   1404 W. Main Street 
 
 Fraternal Order of Eagles Aerie 584 Fraternal Order of  1205 N. Lake Street 
 Scott Doerr, Agent   Eagles 
  
 Kort LLC    Gesundheit   1300 E. Main Street 
 Ardis K. Kort, Agent 
   
 Humphrey’s Pub LLC   Humphrey’s Pub  500 W. Main Street  
 Beth M. Humphrey, Agent 
 

JWM-CO LLC    Jimbo’s   1007 E. Main Street 
James W. Merkel, Agent 

 
Hinz, Calvin L.    Kathy & Cal’s Club 64  2405 W. Main Street 
 

 Lincoln Lanes, Inc.   Lincoln Lanes   1208 N. Center Ave. 
 Mark M. Bares, Agent 
  
 V-F Inc     Los Mezcales   3340 E. Main Street 
 Valeria Melendez, Agent 
 

Plautz’s Pub LLC   Plautz’s Pub   310 E. 2nd Street 
 David R Plautz, Agent  
 

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

20
19

 L
iq

u
o

r 
L

ic
en

se
 L

is
t 

to
 H

 &
 S

  (
33

07
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 L

iq
u

o
r 

L
ic

en
se

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

(p
er

 li
st

))



Texas Recreation Center, Inc. Merrill Public Golf Course 1601 O’Day Street 
 Michael Malinowski, Agent 
 
 Kim’s Wisconsin LLC   New Pine Ridge Restaurant 1302 N. Center Ave 
 Qemal Alimi, Agent  
 
 Merrill Social & Sick Benefit Society S & S Bar   418 Grand Avenue 
 Amanda Lepsch, Agent 
 
 Jesperson, Flori A.   Salvo’s Restaurant  201 E. 2nd Street 
 
 Sawmill Brewing Company Inc Sawmill Brewing Co.  1110 E 10th Street  
 Zach Kubichek, Agent    
 

Schmitt-Manecke-Donner   VFW Post 1638  205 Cleveland Street 
 VFW Post 1638  

John Rathke, Agent 
 

 
CLASS A COMBINATION LICENSE 

 
 

Bonnell’s, Inc.    Dave’s County Market 300 E. 1st Street 
 David J. Bonnell Jr., Agent  
 
 LeeLynn, LLC    Lee’s Piggly Wiggly  3404 E. Main Street 
 William Schultz, Agent 
 
 Kwik Trip, Inc.    Kwik Trip #386  2311 E. Main Street 
 Heather Elizabeth Timm, Agent  
  
 Kwik Trip, Inc    Kwik Trip #241  300 S. Pine Ridge Ave 
 Angela Rae Grefe, Agent 
  

Krist Oil Company   Krist Food Mart #88  105 S. Center Avenue 
Linda Hackbarth, Agent   
 
Heartland Cooperative Services Merrill Cenex   1300 N. Center Avenue 
Sue White, Agent 
 
Lotter II LLC    Lotter’s Merrill Mobil  1201 Grand Avenue 
Franklin R Lotter, Agent 
 
Merrill Shell LLC   Merrill Shell   604 S. Center Avenue 
Howard L. Wagner, Agent    
 

 Carkelsy, Inc    Pine Ridge Convenience 3350 E. Main Street 
 Gary L. Schwartz, Agent  Store 
 

Riiser Fuels, LLC   RStore #40   1001 N. Center Avenue 
Linda Kayzar, Agent 
 
 
CAP Operations Inc   Holiday #71   702 N. Center Avenue 

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

20
19

 L
iq

u
o

r 
L

ic
en

se
 L

is
t 

to
 H

 &
 S

  (
33

07
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 L

iq
u

o
r 

L
ic

en
se

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

(p
er

 li
st

))



 Gail Closser, Agent  
 
 Walgreen Co.    Walgreens #10574  101 N. Center Avenue 
 Jane  Zipperer, Agent 
 
 Wal-Mart Stores East, LP  Walmart #1366  505 S. Pine Ridge Avenue 
 Christina L. Smolka, Agent 
  
  

CLASS B BEER LICENSE 
 
 

 Merrill Hockey, Inc.     Merrill Hockey   1100 Marc Drive 
Cheryl Skoug, Agent 
 
PH Hospitality Group LLC  Pizza Hut   901 N. Center Avenue  
Brenda Blixt, Agent 

 
 

CLASS A BEER LICENSE 
 

 
 Pier 2 Citgo LLC   Pier 2 Cenex   504 E 2nd Street 
 Jennifer Bienfang, Agent  
 
  

CLASS A BEER LICENSE WITH CIDER 
 

CAP Operations, Inc    Holiday #49   1312 W Main Street 
Mary Hofele, Agent 

 
 

CLASS B BEER AND CLASS C WINE 
 
  
 Dixie Land BBQ, LLC   Dixie Land BBQ  608C E 2nd St 

Scott A. Sense, Agent      
 
 

CLASS C WINE 
 
 DSwan LLC     First Street Coffee Station 809 E. 1st Street 
 Dawn R Swan, Agent 

 
William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 

City Clerk 
 

Updated 5/15/18 

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

20
19

 L
iq

u
o

r 
L

ic
en

se
 L

is
t 

to
 H

 &
 S

  (
33

07
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 L

iq
u

o
r 

L
ic

en
se

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

(p
er

 li
st

))



Changes on Liquor License Applications for 2018-2019 
 
 

Merrill Hotel Group – Trade name now Boarders Inn & Suites by Cobblestone 
 
Wal-Mart agent change to Christina L. Smolka 
 
CAP Operations (Holiday) new officers 
 
Pier 2 Citgo – Secretary, Jamie Rousseau, address change 
 
Merrill Hockey 2 new officers: President – Carmen Klug 
     Secretary – Sara Klebenow 
 
VFW new VP – Mike Paul 
 
Added Sawmill Brewing to Class B Combination 
 
Skippers closed 
 
Johnny T’s closed 
 
Checkered Churn closed 
 
5/15/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                        

13.3.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8-

20
19

 L
iq

u
o

r 
L

ic
en

se
 C

h
an

g
es

 f
o

r 
H

 &
 S

  (
33

07
 :

 2
01

8-
20

19
 L

iq
u

o
r 

L
ic

en
se

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

(p
er

 li
st

))



14.1.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ve
r-

C
o

lle
ct

ed
 P

P
-C

at
er

p
ill

ar
  (

33
10

 :
 W

ri
te

 o
ff

 P
P

 t
ax

 b
ill

 f
o

r 
C

at
er

p
ill

ar
)



14.1.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ve
r-

C
o

lle
ct

ed
 P

P
-C

at
er

p
ill

ar
  (

33
10

 :
 W

ri
te

 o
ff

 P
P

 t
ax

 b
ill

 f
o

r 
C

at
er

p
ill

ar
)



14.1.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

ve
r-

C
o

lle
ct

ed
 P

P
-C

at
er

p
ill

ar
  (

33
10

 :
 W

ri
te

 o
ff

 P
P

 t
ax

 b
ill

 f
o

r 
C

at
er

p
ill

ar
)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



15.1.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

33
75

 :
 F

ile
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s)



 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 
Introduced: June 12, 2018 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE  
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 26, Article V, Section 26-136 of the Code of Ordinances for the 
City of Merrill is amended as follows: 

Sec. 26-136  Purchase or possession of tobacco products 

(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this section, shall 
have the meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Tobacco products means any substance containing tobacco leaf, including, but not 
limited to, cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco or dipping tobacco or any 
device, whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold as an e-cigarette, e-cigar, e-
pipe, e-hookah, vape pen, electronic vaping device, or any other similar product.  

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 

 

AN ORDINANCE: By Health and Safety Committee 
Re: Amending Chapter 26, Article V, Section 26-

136 Tobacco Products  

16.1.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 t
o

b
ac

co
 p

ro
d

u
ct

s 
 (

33
40

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 t
o

b
ac

co
 p

ro
d

u
ct

s)



Moved by: 
 

Adopted: 
 

Approved: 
 

Published: 
 

Approved: 
 
 

Derek Woellner, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 

William N. Heideman, City Clerk
 
  

16.1.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 t
o

b
ac

co
 p

ro
d

u
ct

s 
 (

33
40

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 t
o

b
ac

co
 p

ro
d

u
ct

s)



 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2017 COMPLIANCE MAINTENANCE 

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE CITY OF MERRILL WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Merrill is required by the Wisconsin Department of 

Natural Resources (WDNR) to complete a Compliance Maintenance Annual 
Report on its Wastewater Treatment Plant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Water and Sewage Committee, of the City of Merrill, has 
reviewed the Compliance Maintenance Report for the year 2017, and has 
determined that it reflects the performance of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
during 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the report indicates a need for continued improvements at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant and its operations to meet the requirements set 
forth by the WDNR; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN, this 12th day of June, 2018, that: 
 

1. The Compliance Maintenance Annual Report for 2017 is hereby approved 
and authorized to be filed with the WDNR. 

 
2. That the Compliance Maintenance Annual Report for 2017 is an accurate 

indication of the performance of the City of Merrill Wastewater Treatment 
Plant for the year 2017. 

 
 

Recommended by Rob Norton, 
Chairman, Water and Sewage 
Committee 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
Derek Woellner, Mayor 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk 

17.1.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
M

A
R

 f
o

r 
W

W
T

 P
la

n
t 

 (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



17.1.b

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

M
A

R
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
P

  (
33

78
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

M
A

R
 f

o
r 

W
W

T
 P

la
n

t)



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING LINCOLN COUNTY HUMANE SOCIETY AS 

AN ADDITIONAL COLLECTION OFFICIAL FOR DOG LICENSE TAXES FOR 
THE CITY OF MERRILL   

 
WHEREAS, under Wis. Stats. Section 174.065, the collecting official for 

the dog license tax is the City of Merrill Treasurer; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Lincoln County Humane Society has agreed to assist 

year-round with dog licensing for pets within the City of Merrill, effective 
December 1, 2018; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Personnel and Finance Committee, on May 21, 2018, 

recommended that the City of Merrill Common Council appoint the Lincoln 
County Humane Society as a year-round Collection Official for dog license taxes 
effective December 1st, 2018;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 12th day of June, 2018, that the City 
of Merrill Common Council, does hereby appoint the Lincoln County Humane 
Society as a year-round Collection Official for dog license taxes effective 
December 1st, 2018. 

 

Recommended by: Personnel and 
Finance Committee 
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
Derek Woellner 
 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17.2.a

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
d

d
in

g
 h

u
m

an
e 

so
ci

et
y 

fo
r 

d
o

g
 li

ce
n

se
s 

 (
33

11
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 d

o
g

 li
ce

n
si

n
g

)



Dog Licenses-2017 Chart Prepared: 5/8/2018

City of Merrill - Dog Licenses 2017

491 City Treasurer
118 Lincoln County Treasurer
238 Lincoln County Humane Society
847 Total for 2017

Source:  Lincoln County Treasurer

City Treasurer 
58% 

Lincoln County 
Treasurer 

14% 

Lincoln County 
Humane Society 

28% 

Dog Licenses Sold By: 

17.2.b

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

o
g

 L
ic

en
se

s-
20

17
 C

h
ar

t 
 (

33
11

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 d
o

g
 li

ce
n

si
n

g
)



1 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Plan  
2014-2019 

 
July 31, 2014 

 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)

http://www.ci.merrill.wi.us/
http://www.co.lincoln.wi.us/photo_galleries/?c=lincoln_county_public_photos_(view_and_submit)&d=nature&g=983e72e53288&i=15


2 
 

Planning Committee 

  Mayor William Bialecki      David Johnson, City Administrator 

  Alderpersons:       Participating Department Heads: 
  John Burgener, Council President    Jane Deau, Enrichment Center 
  Pete Lokemoen       Rich Grenfell, Transit Administrator 
  Chris Malm        Tom Hayden, City Attorney  
  Tim Meehean       Bill Heideman, City Clerk    
  Rob Norton        Ken Neff, Police Chief 
  Kandy Peterson       Ramona Pampusch, Maintenance Supv. 
  Ryan Schwartzman      Dave Savone, Fire Chief 
  David Sukow       Stacy Stevens, Library Director 
           Kathy Unertl, Finance Director 
  Former Alderperson:      Dan Wendorf, Parks & Recreation Director 
  Steve Haas    
   

Regular Participants from the Public 
Gene Bebel 
Judy Woller 

 
Facilitated & Compiled by: 

Art Lersch 
Community Resource Development Educator 

University of Wisconsin Extension, Lincoln County 
 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



3 
 

Table of Contents 
 
Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Primary Core Values ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Vision ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Mission........................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

SOAR Analysis ................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 8 

Strengths .................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Opportunities ............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 9 

Aspirations ............................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Results (expected) .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Strategic Issue Identification ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Strategic Issue Prioritization ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Strategic Plan Framework ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Strategic Issue #1:  How can Merrill city government help grow the city’s tax base? .......................................................................................... 17 

Strategic Issue #2:  Are there any services Merrill City Government needs to provide that it currently is not?  Are there services that city 
government may not be able to provide any longer or should not be offering? ................................................................................................. 22 

Strategic Issue #3:  What is Merrill City Government’s budget philosophy? ........................................................................................................ 24 

Strategic Issue #4: How does Merrill city government create and implement strategic economic development and redevelopment? ........... 28 

Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

 
 
 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



4 
 

Executive Summary 
 
City of Merrill stakeholders met eight times to complete the city government’s first ever strategic plan.  Important work achieved 
included a SOAR (strengths, opportunities, aspirations, results) analysis, the pronouncement of core values for city government, the 
development (and formal Council approval) of both city government vision and mission statements, the identification and 
prioritization of strategic issues, a review of city services (information provided by department heads), the creation of a vision 
statement for the community, the identification of strategies and action steps to address the chosen strategic issues, and additional 
action planning. 
 
Along with achieving all this, another goal was to use the process as a means to better educate both internal leaders and the public 
about how city government functions and to facilitate better communication and working relations among city officials.  Although 
the public did not participate to the degree that was hoped, despite efforts to engage them, those residents who did attend the 
meetings made it known early on that they wanted to be participants rather than mere spectators.  This, along with the 
strengthening of internal relationships among city government leaders, is nearly as important a byproduct of the process as the plan 
itself.  
 
Since this was the first time the stakeholders took part in a comprehensive strategic planning process, they often had to learn about 
procedures while doing them.  Methods used to generate ideas and to ultimately prioritize the issues city government will focus on 
in the coming five years were kept somewhat basic, hopefully not to the detriment of the outcome.  That said, the strategic plan 
outlined in this document, like most plans of its type, is meant to be simply a framework for action.  It is not a panacea, and most 
important, it should be modified to reflect changing priorities and resources.  Perhaps the greatest strength of this particular plan is 
that city government has already begun to address many of the issues contained in it.  The fact that those issues have now been 
identified in writing will compel city government to focus even more of its resources to address them.  Using processes outlined in 
this document, the planning group chose the following four strategic issues for city government to concentrate on in the coming 
years. 
 

• How can Merrill city government help grow the city’s tax base? 
• Are there any services that we need to provide that we currently are not?  Are there services that we may not be able to 

provide any longer or should not be offering?  
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



5 
 

• What is Merrill city government’s budget philosophy?  
• How does city government create and implement strategic economic development (and redevelopment)? 

Details of how these issues will be addressed beginning on page 17 of this report. 

 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



6 
 

Primary Core Values 
 
For the first time in recent history, City of Merrill government stakeholders identified core values for how the government should 
operate.  They became the principles upon which planning conversations took place. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Responsive 
 Customer Satisfaction 
 Greatest good for the Most Residents 
 Government that is easy to do Business With 
 Adaptable 
 Consistent  
 Highest level of Quality Service 
 Fairness  
 Progress 
 Active Listening  
 Interact well Together 
 Best use of Limited Resources 
 Safety 
 Positive outlook 
 Trust 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



7 
 

Vision 
 
Using the core values and information from other discussions, planning group members developed the following vision statement. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Mission 
 
Stakeholders also developed the mission statement below. 
 
 
   
   
             

 

Both the city government mission and the vision statements were formally and unanimously approved by City Council during its May 
13, 2014 meeting.   It is believed that this is the first time city government has had either a mission or vision statement.  Following 
approval, the statements were added to the City of Merrill website and will be communicated via other means from now on. 

Also created during the planning process was a community vision statement.   

“Merrill, embracing our diverse heritage while working toward a brighter future” 

Further review and formal approval of this statement is pending.   

“We, the employees and officials of the City of Merrill, 
envision superior services while being open, 
responsible, and transparent to the public”  

“The mission of the City of Merrill government is to 
provide high quality services in an innovative, 
consistent, and efficient manner” 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



8 
 

SOAR Analysis 

SOAR stands for strengths, opportunities, aspirations, and results.  This type of analysis is similar to a SWOT (strengths, weaknesses, 
opportunities, threats) overview, but emphasizes the positive aspects of a particular organization.  Opportunities are in many cases 
also challenges that are being or will be faced.  Planning group members completed this exercise in preparation for identifying and 
prioritizing the most important strategic issues city government will face over the next five years.   

Strengths 

� Safety services. 
o Both the fire and police departments are career rather 

than volunteer operations  
o Both the police and fire department are administered by 

very competent, strong leaders 
o Both the police and fire department staff take a highly 

professional approach to their work 
o The police and fire departments work well together to 

achieve common goals 
 

� The city workforce is committed/dedicated to public service and is 
highly competent.  (An example would be city employees having to do utility work during Merrill’s coldest winter on record).  
Many of them correctly have the attitude that they are filling career positions. 
 

� All city departments have a community focus.  Their employees are constantly thinking of ways to strengthen the community 
through the services they provide. 
 

� City officials and employees are proud of Merrill and passionately wish to improve it. 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



9 
 

� The city currently has good, strong, progressive leadership. 
 

� The number and diversity of services the city provides is extensive.  (E.g. Services are provided to citizens of various ages.) 
 

� City government has extensive interaction with the Merrill Area Public School District, especially the fire and police 
departments. 
 

� Availability of MP3/Merrill Productions videotaping government in action to show how committees and Council function. 
 

� There is a unique public transportation system for this size city.  
 

Opportunities 
 

� Become even more involved in regional efforts that will allow for the pooling of resources. 
 

� Work more closely with more of the entities that promote regional efforts such as Centergy, Grow North, and North Central 
Regional Plan Commission. 
 

� Increase the openness and transparency of city government by improving internal and external communications. 
 

� Communicate by using a wider variety of means including social networking and other online options. 
 

� Focus on just a few specific, potentially very impactful economic development projects (Lincoln House; former Guys Shop, 
etc.).  Create a marketing strategy to persuade developers, including those who live in the area, to take on the projects. 
 

� Continue to explore multijurisdictional ways (intergovernmental cooperation) to provide services (e.g. city and county; 
working with Tomahawk, etc.). 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



10 
 

� Search and apply for state and federal grants to offset equipment and perhaps other costs. 
 

� Hold meetings with other governments to learn about their “best practices” and apply those methods if/when it makes 
sense.   
 

� Continue attending North Central Wisconsin fire and police chief meetings (learning more about regional issues). 
 

� City IT department needs to provide training to Council members and residents on how to best use social media and other 
communication strategies. 
 

� Develop or join multi-city/county cooperatives that purchase supplies.  Cooperatives drive down prices because they buy in 
bulk.  Take a similar approach to providing employee benefits (check out UW-Platteville arrangement.) 

 
 
Aspirations 
 
Group members were asked to use the city government and community vision statements as references for the discussion. 
 

� Focus residential development in the central city area rather than in the outskirts of the city. 
o Continue blight elimination 
o Develop whole areas rather than just isolated lots 
o Review and change when it makes sense zoning ordinances that impede residential re-development 

 
� Aspire to be responsive to the changing needs of the community. 

 
� City government needs to have a user friendly attitude while stressing to residents that it can’t do it all. 

 
� Aspire to educate people how city government works. 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



11 
 

� City government needs to be friendlier to businesses.  Help business owners through the process of locating here or 
expanding.  If a regulation cannot/should not be changed, give business owners other options that will help them do what 
they need to do. 
 

� More open and transparent communication should be fostered.  There needs to be communication improvements between 
city departments.  Information should be out sooner.  (IT can help facilitate this).  Department reports to oversight 
committees should be forwarded to alderpersons.  Committee minutes should be completed and distributed in a more 
timely fashion.  Make it easier for people to watch MP3 broadcasts (now only on cable; IT can help facilitate). 
 

� Aspire to be the best we can be: we should be developing and communicating best practices in government management. 
 
 
Results (expected) 
 

� City government should do all it can to recruit businesses to the area.  It should be more strategic about what businesses are 
recruited.  Specifically, there are opportunities to target insurance industry businesses because this is a regional hub for that 
service. 

 
� City government should do all it can to squelch the area rumor mill. 

 
� City government should have stronger ties to the local hospital and be more active in promoting the health of the 

community.  The hospital is a vital institution in our community and losing it would be devastating. 
 

� “Nurture” business growth.  City government should do everything it can to promote the economic health of the community 
by working closely with businesses that wish to expand or relocate here.  Be a facilitator rather than an entity that throws up 
road blocks to business expansion, retention, and relocation.  (The city with the county economic development director as 
the point person is currently finalizing details that will likely bring a business incubator to Merrill). 
 

� City government should embrace technology (make information about city government and the community more available). 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



12 
 

� City government should pass more ordinances that enhance residents’ quality of life.  A recent example would be the 
“chicken ordinance” allowing residents to raise chickens and have home grown, healthier eggs. 
 

� City government should help foster a healthier 
community (e.g. support of River Bend Trail 
project). 
 

� City government should take specific actions to 
attract new residents and increase the tax 
base.  
 

� City government should take specific actions to 
help bring more family supporting jobs to 
Merrill.  Many of these jobs can be realized by 
promoting industrial growth. 
 

� City government should help foster a greener, more eco – friendly community. 
 

� City government should utilize more highly sophisticated technology uses. 
 

� City government should help find and implement ways to attract and retain young professionals. 
 

� Each department needs to do a better job of communicating successes.  This will help to develop pride in both the 
community and city government. 
 

� City government helps solve regional problems.  Solving regional problems will help strengthen the city. 
 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



13 
 

Strategic Issue Identification    

Planning group members were asked to think in terms of important, complex issues that city government will likely have to address 
in the coming years.  They used the results of the SOAR analysis to help determine the issues.   

� Rising costs of providing public services while the city’s tax base is declining or stagnate (blight issues contribute greatly to 
this challenge) 

o Economic development, including the creation of amenities like the River Bend Trail, and job creation are important 
elements in the attempt to strengthen the tax base. 

o Increasing and maintaining the optimal city population is key to increasing the tax base. 
 

� Are there any services that we need to provide that we currently are not?  Are there services that we may not be able to 
provide any longer or should not be offering? 

o If services are to be maintained at current levels or even increased, 
how will that be funded?  (Note: It was mentioned that successful efforts to grow the 
city’s tax base and to maintain or increase the city’s population will be key 
components in helping city government pay for the services people need and want.)  
 

� What is Merrill city government’s budget philosophy?  
 

� How can Merrill city government help to better engage the public and 
organizations in projects that will enhance quality of life?  Government can no longer do anything important without the 
help of organizational partners and citizens.   

 
� How can city government facilitate partnerships with entities that are working to address regional issues? (I.e. with other 

governments, with nonprofit organizations, with private business, etc.) 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)

http://www.cardcow.com/46326/greetings-from-merrill-wisconsin/


14 
 

� How can city government help foster a cultural change within Merrill where its citizens are more trusting of one another, 
their city government, and have more hope for and faith in the future? 

o Perhaps some of this can be done by promoting the positive things that are already happening in the city. 
 

� City government workforce recruitment and retention. (How can we offer competitive compensation?  What other 
incentives can be offered to hire and keep high quality employees?) 

 
� Develop Route 51 corridor and County G areas.  Foster dialogue with townships in order to get this done.  Consider 

developing northward up County K.  Prioritize development by choosing areas that have the best potential return on 
investment (best bang for the buck.) 

 
� Finding ways to maintain and improve the city’s aging infrastructure.  Where/how can the funds be acquired?  - This may 

also be tied to tax base issues. -  Break down components of this in order to prioritize what is most needed.  (Some 
infrastructure projects are being mandated by the state.  These and others based strictly on deterioration issues are time 
sensitive).  Decide which of these projects can be “piggybacked” (e.g. upgrade sewer and water system, and then fix the 
roads in that area, etc.) 

 
� Eliminate blight. 

 
� Dealing with increased, more pervasive drug use in and around the city.   

 
� Strengthening fire prevention.  This could help reduce blight and benefit economic development. 

 
� Our aging population. 

 
 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



15 
 

Strategic Issue Prioritization 

Participants were asked to next begin thinking about which issues already mentioned are the most important for city government to 
address in the coming years.  They were asked to do so also based on the following: 

a. What is urgent and important? (What is the difference between urgency and importance?) 
b. What is not urgent and important? (Issues that city government has time to plan how to address) 
c. Can progress toward addressing the strategic issue be measured?  (How can progress that is made be communicated to city 

government internal stakeholders and the public?) 

After discussion and a voting process, planning stakeholders chose the strategic issue priorities below.  The issues were put into 
question format to better facilitate action planning processes (i.e. create an action plan that will help answer the questions). 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

• How can Merrill city government help grow the city’s tax 
base? 
 

• Are there any services that we need to provide that we 
currently are not?  Are there services that we may not be 
able to provide any longer or should not be offering?  
 

• What is Merrill city government’s budget philosophy?  
 

• How does city government create and implement strategic 
economic development (and redevelopment)? 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



16 
 

The strategic issues chosen primarily have to do with focusing city government resources on promoting economic development and 
redevelopment that makes the most sense.  Most of the issues are tied together by this common thread.  It was mentioned during 
the last strategic planning session that the city may want to consider developing a new comprehensive plan based on this strategic 
plan framework. 

Other issues that were considered were: 

• “What can city government do to maintain and improve the city’s aging infrastructure?”  
• “How can city government facilitate partnerships with entities that are working to address regional issues?”  
• “How can city government better inform and educate internal and external stakeholders in the most transparent way 

possible about the positive things it is facilitating, some of the challenges it is facing, and how it functions?”   

It was agreed that all these “other” issues will be addressed at some level, but will not be areas where city government focuses most 
of its efforts in the coming years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



17 
 

Strategic Plan Framework 

Because these strategic issues are so intertwined, a few strategies and action steps are repeated throughout the framework.  Taking 
steps to fulfill a particular strategy may help further another.   

 

Strategic Issue #1:  How can Merrill city government help grow the city’s tax base? 

The planning group identified the following principles upon which strategies for this issue were developed. 

� Make it easier for people to start or expand a business within the city.   Too often, city government regulations are obstacles 
to business development.  City officials/employees need to do a better job of helping potential and current business owners 
find options that will still allow them to comply with regulations while helping them establish or expand their enterprises.  
We need to say “yes” much more often than “no.”  We need to become more business friendly. 
 

� Find ways to promote job creation and diversity.  For this and the principle above, the planning group decided that it will be 
important to maintain city funding for Lincoln County Economic Development Corporation.   
 

� Redevelop dilapidated housing sections especially in downtown areas and develop new housing where it makes the most 
sense.  Nearly 65% of the city’s total equalized value is derived from residential property (2012 Wisconsin Department of 
Revenue).  Great strides are currently being made to improve the overall quality of the city housing stock, but much more 
must be done to ensure that homes for sale are quickly sold and houses throughout every ward are well maintained.  
Planning group members agreed that it is now time to once again approach the county to request that it tighten up its 
foreclosure process (stick to three rather than five year + timeline).     
 

� Economic development.  When we tear down the old, make certain that we replace it with something better (not possible 
normally with residential development).  Becoming even more aggressive on eliminating blight will be key to good economic 
development.  Prioritizing projects based on their potential for a solid return on investment will also be vital. 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



18 
 

 
� Attract young families to the area by creating jobs and improving the city’s “quality of life” amenities.  It was acknowledged 

that attracting young families will also serve to slow population decline (between 2000 and 2010, the city’s population 
declined nearly 5%).  In theory, attracting young families will also help slow aging population trends and reverse current 
population projections. 
 

Suggested Metrics 

 Grow the city’s tax base by 20% during the five year strategic plan implementation period.  (Achieve an annual increase of 3-
5%).  (Measure by comparing the previous year’s figure with the current year’s figure; report on actions taken and results; if 
actions not taken then why.) 
 

 Increase the number of jobs in the city by at least 10% (about 500 jobs) by the end of the plan implementation period, with 
half offering a “family supporting” wage. 1  (Communicate specific actions that city government performed to help create 
those positions.) 
 

Responsible Parties 

The following three entities were identified as being the primary lead parties responsible for spearheading actions 
 

 City Redevelopment Authority (in collaboration with the mayor and city administrator) 
 Lincoln County Economic Development Corporation 
 Common Council (as primary decision making authority 

 

                                                           
1 According to the MIT Living Wage Calculator (http://livingwage.mit.edu/counties/55069), the minimum adequate living hourly wage for a family of four in 
Lincoln County is $17.61, or approximately $36,600 per year.  According to the American Community Survey (U.S. Census Bureau), there were 4,600 people 
employed in the city in 2012 (2008-2012 estimates). 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)

http://livingwage.mit.edu/counties/55069


19 
 

The entities listed below are seen more as partners in implementing processes. 

 Redevelopment Resource Team 
 Economic development consultants 
 Merrill Area Development Corporation 
 Merrill Area Chamber of Commerce 
 Centergy and whenever possible Grow North 
 Private developers 

(Note: Efforts to increase the tax base in general will be ongoing.) 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
a. City government takes more of an active role 

in marketing the city 
 

 
 

 
 

• Promote the city and city government by the 
latter telling stories about existing services, 
the local educational system, and quality of 
life amenities (frequently update the city 
website; partner with the chamber when 
possible; partner with community entities 
when possible; use various media to tell the 
story) 

 
• Designate staff to help coordinate and carry 

out these marketing efforts (could be all 
department heads, etc.) 

Have promotional tools in place 
and begin using them in earnest 
by no later than the end of 2014 

b. Increase developable land by exploring and 
implementing annexation agreements when 
feasible 

 

• Determine which properties outside city limits 
have the most potential for economic 
development and then take measures to 
implement the projects 

 
• Continually assess those  economic 

development projects that have the greatest 
potential to grow the tax base – e.g. return on 
investment (TIF will continue to be an 
important tool; see below and strategic issue 
#4) 

Look for opportunities throughout 
the plan implementation process 
and beyond (have ongoing talks 
with property owners)  

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



20 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
• Plan and implement infrastructure projects 

first (i.e. after citizens’ immediate needs are 
met) that have the potential to help grow tax 
base because there is an accompanying 
business/company building on that site2  

 
• Seek out and work with appropriate project 

developers 
 

• Apply for grants, etc. (to help supplement 
economic development projects, whether in 
annexed areas or not) 

c. Work with/make it easier for existing 
businesses and corporations to expand their 
operations (if city government regulations 
prevent them from doing something, city 
government must help them find another way 
to reach their goals that still follows 
regulations) 

 

• Review existing business ordinances and 
regulations to determine how restrictive or 
enabling they are 

 
• When possible modify those ordinances or 

regulations that are not “user friendly” 
 
• Create new ordinances or regulations that 

without violating laws make it easier for 
businesses to expand or locate in the city  

 
• Involve existing industry and business owners 

to better capitalize on their contacts (attract 
new businesses, etc.) 

Begin as soon as the plan is 
formally approved 
 
(Note: A review of these 
provisions took place a few years 
ago and some recent 
improvements have been made.  
However, group members agreed 
that it is time to conduct another 
thorough assessment.) 

d. Seek to partner more often with Merrill Area 
Development Corporation (MADC) on 
economic development projects that will help 
strengthen the city’s tax base 

 
(Note: Several group members indicated that the MADC 

• City government continues to build strong 
relationships with MADC board members and 
leaders 

 
• Continue to support and work closely with 

Lincoln County Economic Development 
Corporation (under new director; closely 

Ongoing/when opportunities arise 

                                                           
2 Current criteria for prioritizing infrastructure projects are: 1. Broken/need; 2. Impact if any on tax levy (need to borrow); 3. Is economic development project 
dependent on need to upgrade infrastructure; 4. What are the developer’s plans?; 5. What is the ROI? 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



21 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
Board should attempt to better define that organization’s 
mission, including how it relates to working with city 
government.  There was some indication that the planning 
group believes that part of MADC’s mission is and should be 
to do what the city cannot.) 

linked to MADC) 
 

• Work with the Redevelopment Authority, 
MADC and other entities to explore 
development of vacant , underdeveloped, or 
undeveloped parcels within city limits (as of 
July 2014, there were three or four parcels 
that could be targeted) 

e. Strengthen the relationship with existing 
railroad business development entities (often 
related to more regional economic 
development initiatives) 

• Learn even more about what the railroads 
have to offer and how the City of Merrill and 
them can collaborate 
 

• Redevelopment Resources make the 
appropriate contacts when it is desirable and 
feasible for city government to work with 
railroads on a regional or local project 

 
• Redevelopment Resources along with city 

leaders, primarily the mayor and city 
administrator, negotiate services when 
applicable 

Ongoing, but show that measures 
have been taken to complete the 
action steps during the first year of 
plan implementation (by the 
summer/fall of 2015) 

f. Reduce blighted residential property by 25% 
based on current (July 2014) numbers 

 
(Note: It was mentioned that Merrill is currently at the 
forefront of resolving these cases.   This strategy is included 
because the city wants to make sure it continues these 
efforts and better ascertain the impact of such activities on 
the overall economic and aesthetic health of the 
community.) 

• City government takes the lead with other 
partners such as the chamber to promote 
Merrill as a family friendly city  

 
• Apply for grants, etc. (to help supplement 

residential property projects) 
 

• Continue to apply for (and hopefully receive) 
CDBG grants for income eligible home owners 
wishing to repair homes 

Even more systematic ways to 
measure how much impact is 
being made should be in place by 
the end of the first year of plan 
implementation (summer/fall of 
2015) 

g. Establish more Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) 
Development incentives 

• Prioritize TIF related opportunities based on 
similar criteria being used to rank potential 
economic development and redevelopment 
projects 

 

Focus initial efforts in second and 
third years of plan implementation 
(mid-2015 through mid-2017).  
Ongoing thereafter. 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



22 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
• Recognize and pursue opportunities for city 

expansion through annexation 
 
• Gain a better understanding of funding sources 

available to help support TIF development 
projects 

 
• Work with the Redevelopment Authority, 

MADC and other entities to explore 
development of vacant , underdeveloped, or 
undeveloped parcels within city limits (as of 
July 2014, there were at least three or four 
parcels that could be targeted) 

 

  
Strategic Issue #2:  Are there any services Merrill City Government needs to provide that it currently is not?  Are 
there services that city government may not be able to provide any longer or should not be offering? 
 
The planning group stated that ongoing analysis of what kinds of services are being provided, how they are being provided, and 
especially at what levels they are being provided will be an important way to ensure responsible budgeting practices.  Emphasis was 
placed on adjusting levels of service when appropriate rather than eliminating or adding services. 

Suggested Metrics 

 Information about what services citizens value and what trends may affect service provision 
 

 Ongoing department level analyses and periodic reporting to administration  
 

 Decisions about what levels services should be offered at based on the information gathered 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



23 
 

 Cost of providing services remains the same or is even a bit less throughout the plan implementation period.  (If costs are 
rising, then revenue needs to be generated to cover those costs.) 
 

Responsible Parties 

 City Administrator 
 Department heads 
 Council 
 Mayor 
 Department staff 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
a. City wide macro analysis of services 

department by department (include in 
program descriptions the outcomes that are 
expected to be derived)3 

 
 

 

• Each department annually compiles 
information about the level of 
services that is needed currently and 
whether that level will need to 
increase or can be reduced in the 
future 
 

• Analyze overall picture of service 
provision in the context of annual 
budget preparations and also using a 
needs first then wants approach (see 
strategies b. and c.) 

 
• Explore with other entities 

(government and non-government) 
collaborations to provide services 
when it makes sense 

 

Complete by the beginning of the second 
year of plan implementation (summer/fall 
2015) 

                                                           
3 Some elements of Performance Based Budgeting may need to be employed to ensure that the extent to which expected outcomes are achieved can be 
documented. 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



24 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
• Negotiate and implement those 

collaborations 
b. Internal department analyses of current 

services, what may be needed in the future, 
and at what levels services should be 
provided  

 
(Note: It was acknowledged several times during the 
planning process that local governments often do not 
have much control of what services they provide but can 
often make decisions about the level at which they are 
delivered.) 

• Each department compiles 
information about the level of 
services that are needed currently and 
whether that level will need to rise or 
can be reduced in the future (begin by 
using the reports that were developed 
during the strategic planning process) 
 

• Provide information about the level of 
services offered to the public and  to 
city government decision makers on 
an annual basis as part of the regular 
budget development process 

Conduct annually 

c. Identify services that are recognized priorities  
indicated by the public (begin with National 
Citizens Survey results) 

• Create and implement other tools 
that indicate citizens’ attitudes about 
services, what services are needed, 
what services are wanted, and what 
levels services should be provided 
(focus groups; surveys, etc.) 
 

Conduct twice during the plan 
implementation period (within five years); 
during the summer/fall of 2015 and the 
winter/spring of 2018 

 

 
Strategic Issue #3:  What is Merrill City Government’s budget philosophy? 
 
Such a philosophy should be multi-tiered, meaning that it must include plans for contingency savings, borrowing provisions, 
prioritizing expenditures, and guidelines for carrying over funds from one year to the next, etc.  The budget philosophy should be 
applied consistently over time.  In part, a clearly stated budget philosophy may have to begin by modifying some existing city budget 
policies. 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



25 
 

Suggested Metrics 

 Leveling off of debt payments from year to year4 
 

 Number of inefficiencies in internal services discovered and remedied declines from year to year of plan implementation 
 

 Cost of providing services remains the same or is even a bit less throughout the plan implementation period.  (If costs are 
rising, then revenue needs to be generated to cover those costs.)  
 

 Evidence that potential partners in service provision and purchasing have been contacted and that arrangements that make 
sense (i.e. reduce costs for the parties involved while maintaining efficiencies) are implemented 
 

 Evidence of substantial increases in revenue of at least 20% as a result of city government led or arranged development 
projects  (Note: Grow the city’s tax base by 20% over the strategic plan implementation period; see strategic issue #1.) 
 

Responsible Parties 

 Finance Director 
 Department heads and Council 
 Redevelopment Authority 
 Administration/staff 
 Council 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
a. Level debt structure so that debt 

payments are relatively equal from year 
to year (makes budget projections 

 Continue to obtain bond counseling to help 
structure debt more equitably over time  
 

 Develop comprehensive plan for near and 

Complete the action steps under strategy a.  by 
the end of 2014 

                                                           
4 In 2014, debt service payments are estimated to be about 11.9% of total expenditures.  In 2013, it was about 5.3%.  In 2012, it was about 6.9%.    

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



26 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
easier) 

 
(Note: During the final planning session, there was 
discussion about the way library expansion debt 
had been structured back in 2001 and how that has 
made it more difficult to restructure debt 
payments over the years.) 

 
 

long-term capital/infrastructure needs 
 

 Create a more systematic process for city 
government to judge specifically how 
annexed land will be developed or re-
developed and how much additional 
revenue may be derived from the new 
activity (cost/benefit as to whether it will be 
worth it in the long run to  do the project) 

b. Maintain as many services at the 
highest level possible that the budget 
allows 

 

 Determine and eliminate if present any 
inefficiencies in the way services are 
provided 
 

 Explore providing services in partnership 
with other entities (other governments, 
nonprofit organizations, etc.) 

 
 Negotiate and implement collaborative or 

partner service provision arrangements 
when and where it makes sense 

 
 Develop carry over options for unspent 

dollars from one fiscal year to the next at 
the department level 

Begin immediately; review annually/ongoing 

c. Increase revenue through annexations 
when feasible  

 

• Determine which properties outside city 
limits have the most potential for economic 
development and then take measures to 
implement the projects 

 
• Continually assess those  economic 

development projects that have the greatest 
potential to grow the tax base – e.g. return 
on investment (TIF will continue to be an 
important tool; see strategic issue #4) 

 
• Plan and implement infrastructure projects 

Ongoing; when opportunities are created or 
present themselves 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



27 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
first (i.e. after citizens’ immediate needs are 
met) that have the potential to help grow 
tax base because there is an accompanying 
business/company building on that site  

 
• Work with MADC and other entities to 

explore development of vacant , 
underdeveloped, or undeveloped parcels 
within city limits (as of July 2014, there were 
at least three or four parcels that could be 
targeted) 

 
• Apply for grants, etc. (to help supplement 

economic development projects) 
d. Seek to consolidate internal services 

and purchases when feasible (attempt 
to centralize at least some of the 
services that maintain city government 
itself).  Possible examples include lawn 
mowing, purchases of supplies, etc. 

 

 Ongoing evaluation of internal workflows to 
determine if steps of getting things done  
can be consolidated without losing the 
ability to provide services well and keeping 
existing staff (change workflows if that is the 
case) 

 
 Implement bulk purchasing options across 

various departments when feasible 
 

 Contact other entities to ask how they might 
be able to partner with city government on 
bulk purchases  

Begin a more systematic exploration of 
potential options in early 2015.  Ongoing 
thereafter. 

 

 
 
 
 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



28 
 

Strategic Issue #4: How does Merrill city government create and implement strategic economic development 
and redevelopment? 
 

Part of addressing this strategic issue will be creating and then ranking a list of potential projects based on a number of criteria (see 
strategy a. below.)  The city needs to continue its work to become even more nimble when economic development opportunities 
that perhaps were unforeseen arise.   

Suggested Metrics 

 Growth in tax base by 20% over the five year plan implementation period.  (Achieve an annual increase of 3-5%). 
 

 Increase the number of  jobs in the city by at least 10% (about 500 jobs) by the end of the planning period, with half  offering a 
“family supporting” wage 
 

Responsible Parties 

The following three entities were identified as being the primary lead parties responsible for spearheading actions. 
 

 City Redevelopment Authority (in collaboration with the mayor and city administrator) 
 Lincoln County Economic Development Corporation 
 Common Council (as primary decision making authority 

The entities listed below are seen more as partners in implementing processes 

 Redevelopment Resource Team 
 Economic development consultants 
 Merrill Area Development Corporation 
 Merrill Area Chamber of Commerce 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



29 
 

 Centergy and whenever possible Grow North 
 Private developers 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
a. Continue to prioritize possible projects 

based on potential ROI (tax base 
increase), need for additional or 
repaired infrastructure and ability to 
pay for that (will developer pay?), 
ability to afford/finance the 
development project aside from 
infrastructure expenses, the likelihood 
of finding a developer, and potential 
for spin off economic development or 
redevelopment  

• Create and use a rating sheet that allows for a 
systematic cost/benefit analysis of potential 
economic development and redevelopment 
projects  

 
• Build relationships with local developers and 

find more ways to help them become more 
qualified to take on local development and 
redevelopment projects 

 
 
 

 

Ongoing: Looking for and implementing 
economic development and re-
development opportunities never ends 

e. Engage in more active promotion of 
the city and its potential (to attract 
developers, jobs and residents) 

 

• Continue to upgrade and maintain the city 
website (promotion of city) 

 
• Identify who specifically will engage in the 

promotional work 
 

• Seek opportunities to collaborate with other 
entities (e.g. Merrill Area Development 
Corporation, Lincoln County Development 
Corporation) on promotions that have the 
potential of attracting businesses and 
developers to the city 

 
• Create and implement a list of additional 

promotional actions that the city is or is not 
currently undertaking (determine capacity to 
take on that additional work) 

 
• Establish and implement a schedule of regular 

Begin by the winter of 2015. Ongoing 
thereafter. 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



30 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
public relations activities (e.g. radio 
appearance every two weeks; newspaper 
article every two weeks) 

f. City government should develop its 
own “advertising” about what it is 
doing to attract economic 
development and improve quality of 
life 

 

• Research and implement when it makes 
sense ways other cities are going about doing 
this (best practices) 

 
• Ask local stakeholders experienced in 

advertising how city government can and 
should play a more active role in developing 
promotional materials for this purpose  

 
• Develop and install at least two attractive 

welcome signs, one coming off of Highway 
51/39 and the other to be determined based 
on traffic counts  

 
• City government becomes a more active 

organizer and sponsor (with partners) of 
events or activities that showcase Merrill 
(work even more closely with media to 
promote the events, etc.) 

First year of plan implementation.  
Ongoing. 

g. Establish more Tax Incremental 
Financing (TIF) Development incentives 

• Prioritize TIF related opportunities based on 
similar criteria being used to rank potential 
economic development and redevelopment 
projects 

 
• Recognize and pursue opportunities for city 

expansion through annexation 
 
• Gain a better understanding through research 

of potential funding sources to help support 
TIF development projects 

 
• Work with the Redevelopment Authority, 

MADC and other entities to explore 

Focus initial efforts in second and third 
years of plan implementation (mid-2015 
through mid-2017).  Ongoing thereafter. 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



31 
 

Strategies Action Steps Timeline 
development of vacant , underdeveloped, or 
undeveloped parcels within city limits (as of 
July 2014, there were at least three or four 
parcels that could be targeted) 

 

 

Conclusion 

Evaluation, or the documentation and communication of successes, will be an ongoing process throughout this plan’s 
implementation.  As was discussed in the final planning session, constant reporting at the committee level and periodic updates 
provided at Council or Committee of the Whole meetings will be important methods used to communicate progress.  The suggested 
metrics and benchmarks contained in the plan will help the city create effective evaluation methods.  Just as important as 
documenting and communicating the successes stakeholders, including city residents, will want to know when something in the plan 
is not accomplished and why.  Thus, having this plan is an opportunity for city officials to communicate even more widely and 
systematically what city government does, what it cannot do and why, and what it might need help doing. 

As mentioned in the Executive Summary, this plan is not a panacea.  However, if followed closely – but with the caveat that changes 
be made to it when necessary - it can become a powerful tool helping city government focus on what is truly important.  As 
resources provided to city governments either remain unchanged or in some cases dwindle, those who work for local governments 
will be even more challenged to develop ways to provide the same level or even higher levels of service based on resident demand.  
The more tools available to help achieve that the better.  Moreover, in some cases, residents may have to be told that their 
demands cannot be met, at least temporarily.  If that is the case, a way to justify that will be to say that city government now has a 
plan that one day, if successfully implemented, may help provide the additional resources needed to help satisfy service demands 
well into the future.  This plan also makes it clear that more creative thinking about how to govern and provide services is today 
more than ever necessary to grow communities. 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)



32 
 

The plan also complements and builds on many of the positive efforts being made by countless numbers of people helping to 
improve the City of Merrill, whether they work for city government, non-profit agencies, or are community volunteers.  It in no way 
impedes, but seeks to facilitate their efforts.  And that, perhaps more than any other reason, is why the public must be kept abreast 
of the progress made toward implementing the City of Merrill’s first ever strategic plan.    

 

 

 

18.1.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

u
rr

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n

  (
33

84
 :

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

C
it

y 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Silent Prayer
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Communications and Petitions:
	1. 3376 : Petition on discontinuance of a portion of Cedar Street
	a. Petition objecing to discontinuance of portion of Cedar Street


	7. Public Hearing(s):
	1. 3381 : Public Hearing on a Petition to Vacate a portion of Cedar Street
	a. Notice of action on Cedar Street Vacation
	b. Petition for Cedar Street Vacation
	c. Breaman Site Plan


	8. Resolution from Public Hearing: 
	1. 3380 : Resolution on discontinuance of a portion of Cedar Street
	a. Resolution vacating a portion of Cedar Street

	3379 : Note; The remaining resolutions on the agenda

	9. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 3306 : Minutes of May 8, 2018 meeting
	a. 2018-05-08 Council Minutes


	10. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 3377 : Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending May 31, 2018
	a. Revenue-Expense - 2018-05


	11. Board of Public Works:
	1. 3334 : Bids on M2018-05 Streets Surface Project
	a. Bids on M2018-05 Project


	12. City Plan Commission:
	1. 3323 : Site plan for maintenance garage @ Pine Crest
	a. Site Plan for Pine Crest info


	13. Health and Safety Committee:
	1. 3309 : Picnic license for VFW for tractor pull
	a. VFW Picnic License for Tractor Pull July 7, 2018

	2. 3308 : Picnic Licenes for Merrill Wrestling Club for fair
	a. Merrill Wrestling Picnic License - Fair - Aug 15 - Aug 19

	3. 3307 : 2018-2019 Liquor License Applications (per list)
	a. 2018-2019 Liquor License List to H & S
	b. 2018-2019 Liquor License Changes for H & S


	14. Personnel and Finance Committee:
	1. 3310 : Write off PP tax bill for Caterpillar
	a. Over-Collected PP-Caterpillar


	15. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 3375 : File Committee Reports
	a. Committee Reports


	16. Ordinances:
	1. 3340 : Ordinance on tobacco products
	a. Ordinance related to tobacco products


	17. Resolutions:
	1. 3378 : Resolution on CMAR for WWT Plant
	a. Resolution on CMAR for WWT Plant
	b. CMAR Report for WWTP

	2. 3311 : Resolution on dog licensing
	a. Resolution adding humane society for dog licenses
	b. Dog Licenses-2017 Chart


	18. General Items (amended agenda):
	1. 3384 : Review of current City Strategic Plan
	a. Current Strategic Plan


	19. Mayor's Communications
	20. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · Petition objecing to discontinuance of portion of Cedar Street
	7.1.a · Notice of action on Cedar Street Vacation
	7.1.b · Petition for Cedar Street Vacation
	7.1.c · Breaman Site Plan
	8.1.a · Resolution vacating a portion of Cedar Street
	9.1.a · 2018-05-08 Council Minutes
	10.1.a · Revenue-Expense - 2018-05
	11.1.a · Bids on M2018-05 Project
	12.1.a · Site Plan for Pine Crest info
	13.1.a · VFW Picnic License for Tractor Pull July 7, 2018
	13.2.a · Merrill Wrestling Picnic License - Fair - Aug 15 - Aug 19
	13.3.a · 2018-2019 Liquor License List to H & S
	13.3.b · 2018-2019 Liquor License Changes for H & S
	14.1.a · Over-Collected PP-Caterpillar
	15.1.a · Committee Reports
	16.1.a · Ordinance related to tobacco products
	17.1.a · Resolution on CMAR for WWT Plant
	17.1.b · CMAR Report for WWTP
	17.2.a · Resolution adding humane society for dog licenses
	17.2.b · Dog Licenses-2017 Chart
	18.1.a · Current Strategic Plan


